

Republic of Sierra Leone

Standard Bidding Documents

Procurement of Small Works

[Name of Procuring Entity]

[Title of Proposed Contract]

PROCUREMENT NUMBER:

Date of Issue: [day month year]

Invitation for Bids

[Insert Name of Procuring Entity]

[Title/Name of Bid]

Procurement Num	ber[insert Procurement Number]
Date of First Issue	[insert first issuing date]
The [Name of Pro	ocuring Entity] has [allocated/received] funds (if received state source)
-	ent of [insert title of the goods, works or services] and now invites ligible bidders for the supply of:
[Insert brief summ	nary or list of the required goods, works or services]
[Insert brief nar necessary]	rative giving background information or further specification if
Bidding is open to	all suppliers who can demonstrate [list criteria for eligibility]
the address below	may obtain further information and inspect the bidding document at between [insert hours open for inspection]. Bidding documents may on payment of a non-refundable fee of [insert fee amount and
Bids must be deliv	vered to the address below on or before [insert date and time of bid
<u>U</u> =	nust be accompanied by:
	a <mark>lid Business registration certificate</mark>
	Security of [insert amount] from a reputable Commercial Bank;
	alid tax clearance certificate;
	alid NASSIT clearance certificate;
	gned Integrity Pact; [see attached]
□ [list	all other required documents and samples where applicable]

Bids will be publicly opened on [date] at [time], in the presence of the bidders' designated representatives and anyone who chooses to attend, at the address below. Late bids will be rejected and returned unopened to bidders.

[Insert full name of Procuring Entity; P. O. Box number; Contact name, and/or Title; Room number; Building Name and Street number; Street Name; City; Telephone/Fax/Email]

Table of Contents

Section I: Bidding Procedures	4
Section II. Statement of Requirements	7
Section III. Evaluation and Qualification Criteria	10
Section IV. Form of Contract	16
Section V. Conditions of Contract	19
Section VI. Contract Data	30
Section VII. Bank Guarantee Form for Advance Payment	33
Section VIII. Eligibility and Qualification Form	
Section IX. Integrity Pact	
Section X. Declaration of Conflict of Interest	

Section I: Bidding Procedures

Pro	curement Reference Number:
Pre	paration of Bids: You are requested to Bid for the Works by completing, signing and
ret	urning:
1.	the Bid Submission Sheet in this Section I;
2.	the Bill of Quantity or the Activity Schedule provided in Section II;
3.	the documents evidencing your eligibility, as listed below;
4.	[any other requirements]
	are advised to carefully read the complete Request for Bids document, including the tract Data in Section VI. before preparing your bid.
<u>Va</u>	dity of Bids: The bid validity required is days after the deadline for bids.
the	ling and marking of Bids: Bids should be sealed in a single envelope, clearly marked with Procurement Reference Number above. Envelopes should be sealed in such a manner topening and resealing cannot be achieved undetected.
an	mission of Bids: Bids should be submitted to the address below, no later than the date time of the deadline below. Bids received after the deadline date and time will be ected.
Da	e of deadline: (day, month and year).
Tir	e of deadline: Greenwich Mean Time (GMT)
Ad	lress for Bids:

<u>Opening of Bids</u>: Bids will be opened by the Procuring Entity immediately after the deadline. Bidders' representatives are permitted to attend the opening. A record of the opening will be posted on the Procuring Entity's Notice Board within one working day of the opening.

<u>Evaluation of Bids:</u> The evaluation of bids will use the Technical Compliance Selection methodology as detailed in Section III Evaluation and Qualification Criteria.

Bids failing any stage will be eliminated and not considered in subsequent stages.

<u>Qualification Criteria</u>: You are required to meet the criteria detailed in Section III Evaluation and Qualification Criteria. In summary you must:

- 1. have the legal capacity to enter into a contract;
- 2. not be insolvent, in receivership, bankrupt or being wound up or subject to legal proceedings for any of these circumstances;
- 3. not have had your business activities suspended;
- have fulfilled your obligations to pay taxes and social security contributions;
- 5. have the Contractor Classification [insert required classification];
- 6. not to have a conflict of interest in relation to this procurement requirement; and
- 7. not to be subject to suspension by any Government authority.

<u>Documents Evidencing Eligibility</u>: You are requested to submit copies of the following documents as evidence of your eligibility:

- 1. A copy of a valid business licence,
- 2. A copy of a valid business registration certificate,
- 3. A copy of valid NRA Tax Clearance Certificates (for last three Financial Years),
- 4. NASSIT clearance,
- 5. A list of recent contracts performed,
- 6. Contractor classification,
- 7. Eligibility and Qualification Form at Section VIII,
- 8. Integrity Pact
- 9. [Insert any other documentation required by the Entity]

<u>Technical Requirements</u>: The Works are defined in **Section II**, **Statement of Requirements**.

<u>Bid Prices</u>: Bids shall cover all costs of labour, materials, equipment, overheads, profits and all associated costs for performing the works and shall include all taxes and duties. The whole cost of performing the works shall be included in the items stated and the cost of any incidental works shall deemed to be included in the prices quoted.

<u>Currency</u>: Bids must be priced in Leones and all payments shall be made in Leones.

<u>Best Evaluated Bid</u>: The best evaluated bid shall be the lowest priced bid, which is eligible and substantially responsive to the commercial and technical requirements of the procuring entity and shall be recommended for award of contract.

<u>Award of contract</u>: Award of contract shall be by placement of a contract in accordance with **Section IV: Contract**.

<u>Right to Reject</u>: The Procuring Entity reserves the right to accept or reject any bid or to cancel the bidding process and reject all bids at any time prior to contract award.

Bid Submission Sheet

{Complete this form with all the requested details and submit it as the first page of your bid. Ensure that your bid is authorised in the signature block below. If any documentation is attached, a signature and authorisation on this form will confirm that the terms and conditions of this bidding document prevail over any attachments. If your bid is not authorised, it may be rejected.}

Bid Addressed to (Procuring Entity):	
Date of Bid:	
Procurement Reference Number:	Q.
Subject of Procurement:	~
•	iled in the Statement of Requirements, in accordance in your Request for Bids referenced above.
We confirm that we are eligible to pa criteria specified in Section II: Bid Prod	rticipate in public procurement and meet the eligibility cedures of your Request for Bids.
The validity period of our bid is: date of the submission deadline.	days/weeks/months from the time and
•	he Bills of Quantities [or prices in the Activity Schedule] the validity period and will not be subject to revision or
Works will commence within Order.	days/weeks/months from date of Purchase
Works will be completed within Purchase Order.	days/weeks/months from date of
Bid Authorised By:	
Signature:	Name:
Position:	Date:
Authorised for and on behalf of:	(dd/mm/yy)
Company:	
Address:	·

Section II. Statement of Requirements Scope of Works

Procurement Reference Number: _____

Brief Description of Works
[Insert details]
Location of Works
[Insert Details]
Q,
Commencement and Completion Periods Required
[Insert Details]
Specifications and Drawings
The Works are to be performed in accordance with the following attached Technic Specifications and Drawings:
[List below the Specifications and Drawings and attach these to the bidding document]
1.
2.
3.

Section II. Statement of Requirements

Bill of Quantities for Unit Price Contracts

Procu	rement Reference Number:				
	plete the unit and total prices for signature block below.	or each item l	isted belov	w. Authorise th	e prices quoted
Item No	Item Description	Quantity	Unit of Measure	Unit Price in Leones	Total Price in Leones
				Q.	
			×	>	
			5		
		Á	Q		
		.0)		
		2			
	10	4	Estimate	d Total Price	
Auth	orised By:				
Signa	ture:	Naı	me:		
Positi	ion:	Dat	te:	(DD/MN	
Autho	orised for and on behalf of:			וואראטטן	<i>''</i>
Comr	nany:				

Schedule of Activities for Lump Sum Contracts

Procu	rement Reference Number:	_
-	plete the prices for each activity item listed below. Authorise t ture block below.}	he prices quoted in the
Item No	Description of Activity	Price in Leones
	Q.	
	.~	
	20	
	. 0	
	5	
Δutho	Total Lump Sum Price	
Signat	0	
Position		(DD/MM/YY)
Comp	any:	

Section III. Evaluation and Qualification Criteria

This Section contains all the criteria that the Purchaser shall use to evaluate bids and qualify Bidders. *No other factors, methods or criteria shall be used.* The Bidder shall provide all the information requested in the forms included in Section VIII, Eligibility and Qualification Form.

1.	Evaluation Criteria and Methodology		
1.1	Correction of Arithmetical Errors (In accordance with ITB 24.2)		
(a)	Where there are errors between the total of the amounts given under the column for the price breakdown and the amount given under the Total Price, the former shall prevail and the latter will be corrected accordingly		
(b)	If there is a discrepancy between the unit price and the total price that is obtained by multiplying the unit price and quantity, the unit price shall prevail and the total price shall be corrected, unless in the opinion of the Purchaser there is an obvious misplacement of the decimal point in the unit price, in which case the total price as quoted shall govern and the unit price shall be corrected;		
(c)	If there is an error in a total corresponding to the addition or subtraction of subtotals, the subtotals shall prevail and the total shall be corrected; and		
(d)	If there is a discrepancy between words and figures, the amount in words shall prevail, unless the amount expressed in words is related to an arithmetic error, in which case the amount in figures shall prevail subject to (a) and (b) above.		
1.2	Discounts. The Purchaser shall adjust the price, using the methodology prescribed by the bidder in its letter of bid, to take account of the discounts offered by the bidder in its letter of bid, as read out at the bid opening.		
1.3	Quantifiable Nonmaterial Nonconformities. The Purchaser may waive any minor informality or non-conformity which does not constitute a material deviation, provided such waiver does not prejudice or affect the relative standing of any Bidder		

2. Qualification Criteria

N.B.: This SBD for Procurement of Small Works assumes that no Prequalification has taken place before bidding. However, if a Prequalification process is undertaken, the Qualification Criteria stipulated in this Section III, Evaluation and Qualification Criteria must be updated to ensure that the Bidder and any Subcontractors shall meet or continue to meet the Criteria used at the time of Prequalification. The Eligibility and Qualification form at Section VIII must be completed as part of the Bid.

2	Qualification (Without Prequalification)
2.1	Eligibility (TABLE)
2.2	Historical Contract Non-Performance (TABLE)
2.3	Financial Situation (TABLE)
2.4	Experience (TABLE)
2.5	Personnel (TABLE)
2.6	Equipment (TABLE)

2. Qualification Tables (Without Prequalification)

	2.1 Eligibility						
Factor	Requirement	Single Entity	Joint Venture, Consortium or Association Bidder				
		Bidder	All Partners Combined	Each Partner			
2.1.2 Conflict of Interest	There must be no conflict of interests (ITB 2.2)	Must meet requirement	Existing or intended JVCA must meet requirement	Must meet requirement			
2.1.3 Ineligibility	Must not have been declared ineligible (ITB 2.3 & 36.1)	Must meet requirement	Existing or intended JVCA must meet requirement	Must meet requirement			

	2.2 Historical Contract Non-performance			
Factor	Requirement	Single Entity	Joint Venture, Consortium or Association Bidder	
	~	Bidder	All Partners Combined	Each Partner
2.2.1	Non-performance of a contract did not occur within the last [] years prior to the	Must meet	Existing or	Must meet
History of	deadline for application submission, based on all information on fully settled	requirement	intended	requirement
Non-	disputes or litigation. ¹		JVCA must	
performing			meet	
contracts			requirement	
contract, and	tled dispute or litigation is one that has been resolved in accordance with the Dispute where all appeal instances available to the bidder have been exhausted			
2.2.2	Having not signed a contract and/or failed to provide performance security (ITB	Must meet	Must meet	Must meet
Failure to	35.2) for [] years	requirement	requirement	requirement
sign			itself or as	
contract			partner to	
			past or	
			existing	
			JVCA	
2.2.3	All pending litigation shall in total not represent more than [] percent []% of the	Must meet	Must meet	Must meet
Pending	Bidder's net worth and shall be treated as resolved against the Bidder	requirement	requirement	requirement
Litigation			itself or as	
			partner to	
			past or	
			existing	
			JVCA	

	2.3 Financial Situation			
Factor	Requirement		Joint Venture, Consortium or Association Bidder	
		Bidder	All Partners Combined	Each Partner
2.3.1 Historical Financial Performance	Submission of audited balance sheets [or other financial statements acceptable to the Purchaser,] for the last [] years to demonstrate the current soundness of the bidders financial position and its prospective long term profitability.	Must meet requirement	Not applicable	Must meet requirement
2.3.2 Average Annual Turnover	Minimum average annual turnover of [Le], calculated as total certified payments received for contracts in progress or completed, within the last [] years	Must meet requirement	Must meet requirement	Must meet [] percent []% of the requirement
2.3.3 Financial Resources	The Bidder must demonstrate access to, or availability of, financial resources such as liquid assets, unencumbered real assets, lines of credit, and other financial means, other than any contractual advance payments to meet: (i) the following cash-flow requirement: [Must meet requirement	Must meet requirement	Must meet [] percent []% of the requirement
	2.4 Experience		T	
2.4.1	Experience as Supplier, in at least [] contracts within the last [] years, each with a value of at least [], that have been successfully and substantially completed and that are similar to the proposed Goods and Related Services.	Must meet requirement	Must meet requirement	Must meet requirement

2.5 Personnel

The Bidder must demonstrate that it has the personnel for the key positions that meet the following requirements:

No.	Position	Total Work Similar Experience (years)	In Similar Works Experience (years)
1			

The Bidder shall provide details of the proposed personnel and their experience records at Section VIII

2.6 Equipment

The Bidder must demonstrate that it has the key equipment listed below:

No.	Equipment Type and Ch <mark>aracteristics</mark>	Minimum Number required	
1			

The Bidder shall provide further details of proposed items of equipment at Section VIII

Section IV. Form of Contract

AGREEMENT

This Agreement, made the	day of
20, between	
[name	and address of Employer] (hereinafter called "tl
Employer") and	0
	[name and addres
of Contractor] (hereinafter called "t	he Contractor") of the other part.
Whereas the Employer is desirous t	that the Contractor execute
[name and identification number of	<i>Contract]</i> (hereinafter called "the Works") and
the Employer has accepted the Bid l	by the Contractor for the execution and
completion of such Works and the r	remedying of any defects therein.

Now with this Agreement witnesseth as follow:

- 1. In this Agreement, words and expressions shall have the same meanings as are respectively assigned to them in the Conditions of Contract hereinafter referred to, and they shall be deemed to form and be read and construed as part of this Agreement.
- 2. The following documents shall be deemed to form and be read and construed as part of the agreement, viz:
 - (a) Agreement,
 - (b) Contractor's Bid
 - (c) Contract Data
 - (d) Conditions of Contract
 - (e) Specifications
 - (f) Drawings
 - (g) Bills of Quantities (Activity Schedule),
 - (h) Eligibility and Qualification Criteria
 - (i) Integrity Pact and
 - (j) any other documents listed in the Contract Data as forming part of the Contract.

3.

Contractor as hereinafter mentioned, the Contractor hereby covenants with the Employer to execute and complete the Works and remedy any defects therein in conformity in all respects with the provisions of the Contract.
The Employer hereby covenants to pay the Contractor in consideration of the execution and completion of the Works and the remedying of defects wherein the Contract Price of [insert amount] Leones or such other sum as may become payable under the provisions of the Contract at the times and in the manner prescribed by the Contract.
In Witness whereof the parties thereto have caused this Agreement to be executed the day and year first before written.
The Common Seal of
was hereunto affixed in the presence of:
Signed, Sealed, and Delivered by the Said
in the presence of:
Binding Signature of Employer
Binding Signature of Contractor
Date

In consideration of the payments to be made by the Employer to the



Section V. Conditions of Contract

Table of Clauses

1. Definitions	21
2. Language and Law	22
3. Communications	22
4. Sub-contracting and other contractors	22
5. Personnel	
6. Contractor's Risks	23
7. Insurance	23
8. Contractor to Construct the Works	23
9. The Works to Be Completed by the Completion Date	23
10. Safety	23
11. Program	24
12. Extension of the Completion Date	24
13. Delays Ordered by the Project Manager	24
14. Early Warning	24
15. Correction of Defects	24
16. Uncorrected Defects	24
17. Bill of Quantities	25
18. Changes in the Quantities	25
19. Payment Certificates	
20. Payments	25
21. Compensation Events	26
22. Tax	26
23. Liquidated Damages	26
24. Advance Payment	26
25. Retention Monies	27
26. Dayworks	27
27. Cost of Repairs	27
28. Completion and Taking Over	27
29 Final Δccount	27

30. Termination-action	27
31. Payment upon Termination	28
32. Property	29
33. Release from Performance	29
34. Resolution of Disputes	29



Section V. Conditions of Contract

1. Definitions

1.1 Boldface type is used to identify defined terms.

Activity Schedule means the priced and completed Activity Schedule forming part of the Bid for a Lump Sum Contract.

Bill of Quantities means the priced and completed Bill of Quantities forming part of the Bid.

Compensation Events are those defined in Clause 21 hereunder

The Completion Date is the date of completion of the Works as certified by the Project Manager, in accordance with Sub-Clause 28.

The Contract is the Contract between the Employer and the Contractor to execute, complete, and maintain the Works. The name and identification number of the Contract is given in the Contract Data.

The Contractor is the person or corporate body whose Bid to carry out the Works has been accepted by the Employer.

The Contractor's Bid is the completed bidding document submitted by the Contractor to the Employer.

The Contract Price is the price stated in the Letter of Acceptance and thereafter as adjusted in accordance with the provisions of the Contract.

Dayworks are additional, varied work inputs subject to payment on a time basis for the Contractor's employees and Equipment, in addition to payments for associated Materials and Plant.

Days are calendar days; months are calendar months.

A Defect is any part of the Works not completed in accordance with the Contract.

The Defects Liability Period is the period named in the Contract Data and calculated from the Completion Date.

Drawings include calculations and other information provided or approved by the Employer for the execution of the Contract.

The Employer, as specified in the Contract Data, is the party who employs the Contractor to carry out the Works. The name of the Employer's representative authorized to deal with the Contractor is also given in the Contract Data.

Equipment is the Contractor's machinery and vehicles brought temporarily to the Site to construct the Works.

The Initial Contract Price is the Contract price listed in the Employer's Letter of Acceptance.

Materials are all supplies, including consumable, used by the Contractor for incorporation in the Works.

The Project Manager is the person named in the Contract Data (or any other competent person appointed by the Employer and notified to the Contractor, to act in replacement of the Project Manager) who is responsible for supervising the execution of the Works and administering the Contract

The Required Completion Date is the date on which it is required that the Contractor shall complete the Works. The Required Completion Date is specified in the Contract

Data. The Completion Date may be revised only by the Employer by issuing an extension of time or an acceleration order.

The Site is the area defined as such in the Contract Data.

Specification means the Specification of the Works included in the Contract and any modification or addition made or approved by the Employer.

The Start Date is given in the Contract Data. It is the latest date when the Contractor shall commence execution of the Works. It does not necessarily coincide with any of the Site Possession Dates.

A Subcontractor is a person or corporate body who has a Contract with the Contractor to carry out a part of the work in the Contract, which includes work on the Site.

Temporary Works are works designed, constructed, installed and removed by the Contractor that are needed for construction or installation of the Works.

A Variation is an instruction given by the Project Manager with the approval of the Employer which varies the original Work requirement.

The Works are what the Contract requires the Contractor to construct, install, and turn over to the Employer, as defined in the Contract Data

1.2 This shall be a "Unit Price Contract based on Priced Bill of Quantities"/"Lump Sum Contract" based on priced Activity Schedule", as specified in the Contract Data.

However, if a Government law or decree passed between the date 28 days before the submission of bids for the Contract and the Required Completion Date results in an increase in the price of labour and material, the Employer will adjust the contract price accordingly, provided that the Contractor shall submit documents satisfactory to the Project Manager proving that the requested increases are a result of Government laws or decrees.

2. Language and Law

2.1 The language of the Contract is English and the law governing the Contract are the Laws of the Republic of Sierra Leone.

3. Communications

3.1 Communications between parties that are referred to in the Conditions shall be effective only when in writing. A notice shall be effective only when it is delivered.

4. Sub-contracting and other contractors

4.1 The Contractor may subcontract with the approval of the Project Manager, but may not assign the Contract without approval of the Employer in writing. Subcontracting shall not alter the Contractor's obligations. Not more than 50% of the work may be sub-contracted. The Contractor shall cooperate and share the Site with other contractors, public authorities, utilities, and the Employer.

5. Personnel

5.1 The Contractor shall employ the key personnel named in the Schedule of Key Personnel, referred to in the Contract Data, to carry out the functions stated in the Schedule of other personnel approved by the Project Manager. The Project Manager will approve any proposed replacement of key personnel only if their relevant qualifications and abilities are substantially equal to or better than those of the personnel listed in the Schedule.

5.2 If the Project Manager asks the Contractor to remove a person who is a member of the Contractor's staff or work force, stating valid reasons, the Contractor shall ensure that the person leaves the Site within 72 hours and has no further connection with the work in the Contract.

6. Contractor's Risks

6.1 From the Starting Date until the Defects Liability Certificate has been issued, the risks of personal injury, death, and loss of or damage to property (including, without limitation, the Works, Plant, Materials, and Equipment) Contractor's risks and adjacent property.

7. Insurance

- 7.1 The Contractor shall provide, in the joint names of the Employer and the Contractor, insurance cover from the Start Date to the end of the Defects Liability Period, in the amounts stated in the Contract Data for the following events which are due to the Contractor's risks:
 - (a) loss of or damage to the Works, Equipment, Plant and Materials;
 - (b) loss of or damage to property (except the Works, Plant, Materials, and Equipment) in connection with the Contract; and
 - (c) personal injury or death and Third Party liability.
- 7.2 Policies and certificates for insurance shall be delivered by the Contractor to the Project Manager for approval within 15 days of receipt by the Contractor of the Employer's Notice of Acceptance. All such insurance shall provide for compensation required to rectify the loss or damage incurred. If the Contractor fails to provide the required certificates, the contract shall be considered as annulled. However, the Employer at its discretion may decide to extend the period for submission of insurance certificates or take out the insurance and deduct the cost of premiums from the Contractor's earnings.
- 7.3 Alterations to the terms of an insurance shall not be made without the approval of the Employer.

8. Contractor to Construct the Works

8.1 The Contractor shall construct and install the Works in accordance with the Specifications and Drawings.

9. The Works to Be Completed by the Completion Date

9.1 The Contractor may commence execution of the Works on the Start Date and shall carry out the Works in accordance with the Program submitted by the Contractor, as updated with the approval of the Project Manager, and complete them by the Required Completion Date.

10. Safety

10.1 The Contractor shall be responsible for the safety of all activities on the Site.

11. Program

11.1 Within the time stated in the Contract Data, the Contractor shall submit to the Project Manager for approval a Program showing the general methods, arrangements, order, and timing for all the activities in the Works. The Contractor shall update the Program at intervals no longer than the period stated in the Contract Data. The Project Manager's approval of the Program shall not alter the Contractor's obligations. The Contractor may revise the Program and submit it to the Project Manager again at any time. A revised Program shall show the effect of Variations and Compensation Events.

12. Extension of the Completion Date

12.1 The Project Manager shall extend the Completion Date if a Compensation Event occurs or a Variation is issued which makes it impossible for Completion to be achieved by the Required Date without the Contractor taking steps to accelerate the remaining work, which would cause the Contractor to incur additional cost.

13. Delays Ordered by the Project Manager

13.1 The Project Manager may instruct the Contractor to delay the start or progress of any activity within the Works. Delays or suspension of work by the Project Manager which increase the Contractor's costs shall be subject to equitable adjustments by the Employer.

14. Early Warning

- 14.1 The Contractor shall inform the Project Manager at the earliest opportunity of specific likely future events or circumstances that may adversely affect the quality of the work, increase the Contract Price or delay the execution of the Works. The Project Manager may require the Contractor to provide an estimate of the expected effect of the future event or circumstance on the Contract Price and Completion Date. The estimate shall be provided by the Contractor as soon as reasonably possible.
- 14.2 The Contractor shall cooperate with the Project Manager in making and considering proposals for how the effect of such an event or circumstance can be avoided or reduced by anyone involved in the work and in carrying out any resulting instruction of the Project Manager.

15. Correction of Defects

- 15.1 The Project Manager shall give notice to the Contractor of any Defects before the end of the Defects Liability Period, which begins at Completion, and is defined in the Contract Data. The Defects Liability Period shall be extended for as long as Defects remain to be corrected.
- 15.2 Every time notice of a Defect is given, the Contractor shall correct the notified Defect within the length of time specified by the Project Manager's notice.

16. Uncorrected Defects

16.1 If the Contractor has not corrected a Defect within the time specified in the Project Manager's notice, the Project Manager will assess the cost of having the

Defect corrected, and the Contractor will pay this amount, or the Employer shall recuperate these amounts by deduction from the amounts due to the Contractor.

17. Bill of Quantities

17.1 The Bill of Quantities (for lump-sum Contracts entire Clause 17 shall be replaced with a new Clause as indicated in the Contract Data) shall contain items for the construction, installation, testing, and commissioning work to be done by the Contractor. For Lump Sum contracts, payment activities schedule shall be listed.

17.2 The Bill of Quantities is used to calculate the Contract Price. The Contractor is paid for the quantity of the work actually done at the rate of the Bill of Quantities for each item.

18. Changes in the Quantities

18.1 If the final quantity of the work done differs from the quantity in the Bill of Quantities for the particular item by more than 25 percent, provided the change exceeds 1 percent of the Initial Contract Price, the Project Manager shall adjust the rate to allow for the change. (For lump-sum contracts, this clause shall be substituted by a new clause as indicated in Contract Data).

19. Payment Certificates

- 19.1 The Contractor shall submit to the Project Manager monthly statements of the estimated value of the work executed less the cumulative amount certified previously.
- 19.2 The Project Manager shall check the Contractor's executed work and certify the amount to be paid to the Contractor.
- 19.3 The value of work executed shall be determined by the Project Manager.
- 19.4 The value of work executed shall comprise the value of the quantities of the items in the Bill of Quantities completed. (For lump sum contracts, this Clause shall be substituted by a new Clause as indicated in the Contract Data).
- 19.5 The value of work executed shall include the valuation of Variations and Compensation Events.

20. Payments

- 20.1 Payments shall be adjusted for deductions for advance payments and retention. The Employer shall pay the Contractor the amounts certified by the Project Manager within 45 days of the date of each certificate. If the Employer makes a late payment, the Contractor shall be paid interest on the late payment in the next payment. Interest shall be calculated from the date by which the payment should have been made, up to the date when the late payment is made, at the rate of interest prevailing at the local banks for construction loans.
- 20.2 Items of the Works for which no rate or price has been entered in will not be paid for by the Employer and shall be deemed covered by other rates and prices in the Contract.

21. Compensation Events

- 21.1 The following shall be Compensation Events:
 - (a) The Employer does not give access to a part of the Site by the Site Possession Date stated in the Contract Data.
 - (b) The Project Manager orders a delay or does not issue Drawings, Specifications, or instructions required for execution of Works on time.
 - (c) The Project Manager instructs the Contractor to uncover or to carry out tests upon completed work, which is then found to have no Defects.
 - (d) Other contractors, public authorities, utilities, or the Employer cause delay or extra cost to the Contractor.
 - (e) The advance payment is delayed.
 - (f) The Project Manager unreasonably delays issuing a certificate of completion.
 - (g) Any other events as stipulated in the Contract Data.

If such an event occurs, then the Contract Price shall be equitably adjusted.

22. Tax

22.1 The Contractor is liable for all taxes in accordance with the laws of the Sierra Leone. However, the Project Manager shall adjust the Contract Price if taxes, duties, and other levies are changed between the date 28 days before the submission of bids for the Contract and the date of the last completion certificate. The adjustment shall be the change in the amount of tax payable by the Contractor, provided such charges are already not reflected in the Contract Price.

23. Liquidated Damages

23.1 The Contractor shall pay liquidated damages to the Employer at the rate per day stated in the Contract Data for each day that the Completion Date is later than the Required Completion Date. The total amount of liquidated damages shall not exceed the amount defined in the Contract Data. The Employer may deduct liquidated damages from any payments due to the Contractor. Payment of liquidated damages shall not affect the Contractor's liabilities.

24. Advance Payment

- 24.1 The Employer shall make advance payment to the Contractor of the amounts stated in the Contract Data after the Contractor has:
 - (i) delivered to the site construction equipment and/or materials for initiating the work, and
 - (ii) submitted the Advance Payment Guarantee.
- 24.2 The Contractor is to use the advance payment only to pay for Equipment, materials and other expenses required specifically for carrying out the works. The Contractor shall demonstrate that advance payment has been used in this way by supply of copies of invoices or other documents to the Project Manager.

24.3 The advance payment shall be repaid by deducting proportionate amounts from payments otherwise due to the Contractor, to be recovered within one half of the completion period.

25. Retention Monies

25.1 An amount, specified in the Contract Data, will be retained from each payment to the Contractor to assure performance of the work. This money will be paid to the contractor upon completion and acceptance of the work and within 15 days of the issue by the Project Manager of the Defects Liability Certificate.

26. Dayworks

- 26.1 If applicable, the Dayworks rates in the Contractor's Bid shall be used for small additional amounts of work only when the Project Manager has given written instructions in advance for additional work to be paid for in that way.
- 26.2 All work to be paid for as Dayworks shall be recorded by the Contractor on forms approved by the Project Manager. Each completed form shall be verified and signed by the Project Manager within two days of the work being done.
- 26.3 The Contractor shall be paid for Dayworks as work is performed subject to obtaining signed Dayworks forms.

27. Cost of Repairs

27.1 Loss or damage to the Works or Materials to be incorporated in the Works between the Start Date and the end of the Defects Liability period shall be remedied by the Contractor at the Contractor's cost if the loss or damage arises from the Contractor's acts or omissions.

28. Completion and Taking Over

28.1 The Contractor shall request the Project Manager to issue a certificate of completion of the Works, and the Project Manager will issue such a certificate when he determines that the work is satisfactorily completed. The Employer shall taken over the site and the works within seven days of the Project Manager's issuing of a certificate of completion.

29. Final Account

29.1 The Contractor shall supply the Project Manager with a detailed account of the total amount that the Contractor considers payable under the Contract before the end of the Defects Liability Period. The Project Manager shall issue a Defects Liability Certificate and certify any final payment that is due to the Contractor within 30 days of receiving the Contractor's account if it is correct and complete. If it is not, the Project Manager shall issue within 30 days a schedule that states the scope of the corrections or additions that are necessary. If the Final Account is still unsatisfactory after is has been resubmitted, the Project Manager shall decide on the amount payable to the Contractor and issue a payment certificate.

30. Termination-action

30.1 The Employer or the Contractor may terminate the Contract if the other party causes a fundamental breach of the Contract.

- 30.2 Fundamental breaches of Contract shall include, but shall not be limited to, the following:
 - (a) the Contractor stops work for 15 days when no stoppage of work is shown on the current Program and the stoppage has not been authorized by the Project Manager;
 - (b) the Project Manager instructs the Contractor to delay the progress of the Works, and the instruction is not withdrawn within 15 days; or agreement reached on payments due contractor for cost of delay;
 - (c) the Employer or the Contractor is made bankrupt or goes into liquidation other than for a reconstruction or amalgamation;
 - (d) a payment certified by the Project Manager is not paid by the Employer to the Contractor within 60 days of the date of the Project Manager's certificate;
 - (e) the Project Manager gives Notice that failure to correct a particular Defect is a fundamental breach of Contract and the Contractor fails to correct it within 30 days determined by the Project Manager;
 - (f) the Contractor has delayed the completion of the Works by the number of days for which the maximum amount of liquidated damages can be paid, as defined in the Contract Data.
- 30.3 When either party to the Contract gives notice of a breach of Contract to the Project Manager for a cause other those listed under Sub-Clause 30.2 above, the Project Manager shall decide whether the breach is fundamental or not.
- 30.4 Notwithstanding the above, the Employer may terminate the Contract for convenience by giving the Contractor a thirty-day notice in writing.
- 30.5 If the Contract is terminated, the Contractor shall stop work immediately, make the Site safe and secure, and leave the Site within 15 days of the completion of the notice period.

31. Payment upon Termination

- 31.1 If the Contract is terminated because of a fundamental breach of Contract by the Contractor, the Project Manager shall issue a certificate for the value of the work done and Materials ordered less advance payments received up to the date of the issue of the certificate and less the percentage to apply to the value of the work not completed, as indicated in the Contract Data. Additional Liquidated Damages shall not apply. If the total amount due to the Employer exceeds any payment due to the Contractor, the difference shall be a debt payable to the Employer.
- 31.2 If the Contract is terminated for the Employer's convenience or because of a fundamental breach of Contract by the Employer, the Project Manager shall issue a certificate for the value of the work done, Materials ordered, the reasonable cost of removal of Equipment, repatriation of the Contractor's personnel employed solely on the Works, and the Contractor's costs of protecting and securing the Works, and less advance payments received up to the date of the certificate.

32. Property

32.1 If the Contract is terminated because of the Contractor's default, all Materials and Construction Equipment (owned by the Contractor) on the Site, Plant, Temporary Works, and Works shall be deemed to be the property of the Employer.

33. Release from Performance

33.1 If the Contract is frustrated by the outbreak of war or by any other event entirely outside the control of either the Employer or the Contractor, the Project Manager shall certify that the Contract has been frustrated. The Contractor shall make the Site safe and stop work as quickly as possible after receiving this certificate and shall be paid for all work carried out before receiving it and for any work carried out afterwards for which an agreement has been reached.

34. Resolution of Disputes

34.1 The Employer and the Contractor shall make every effort to resolve amicably by direct informal negotiation any disagreement or dispute arising between them under or in connection with the Contract. If after thirty (30) days from the commencement of such informal negotiations, the Employer and the Contractor have been unable to resolve amicably a Contract dispute, either party may require that the dispute be referred for resolution to three independent qualified experts, one chosen by the Employer and one chosen by the Contractor and the third chosen by an appropriate professional body, such as the Chamber of Commerce. The three should arrive at a solution satisfactory to the Employer and the Contractor. In case of further disagreement either party can take the matter to arbitration in accordance with the Law governing the Contract. The place where arbitration will take place will be stated in the Contract Data.

Section VI. Contract Data 30

Section VI. Contract Data

Procurement Reference Number: _____

Condition of Contract Clause Number	Contract Data			
1.1	Insert in the Contract Data the following Definitions :			
	"Contract: The Name and Procurement Number of the Contract are			
	and number of Contract].			
	"Defects Liability Period: The Defects Liability Period is[days/months]			
	"Employer: The Employer is			
	[insert full name and address of Procuring Entity]."			
	"Intended Completion Date: The Intended Completion Date shall be [insert date]." [If different dates are specified for			
	completion of the Works by section ("sectional completion"), these dates should be listed here.]			
	"Project Manager: The Project Manager is [insert_full			
	name and address] "			
	"Site: The Site is located at [insert location address] and is defined in drawing Nos [insert drawing numbers] attached."			
	"Start Date: The Start Date shall be [insert date]"			
	"Works: The Works consist of: [insert a brief summary description of the Works as indicated in the Invitation for Bids, including relationship to other contracts under the project]."			
1.2	This contract shall be a Unit Priced Contract based on Priced Bills of Quantities/Lump Sum Contract based on a priced Activity Schedule [Delete as appropriate]			
5.1	The following documents are also part of the Contract: • The Schedule of Key Personnel			

Section VI. Contract Data 31

Condition of Contract Clause Number	Contract Data		
	• Etc		
7.1	The minimum insurance covers shall be:		
	(a) The minimum insurance cover for the loss of or damage to the Works, Equipment, Plant and Materials shall be [amount in Leones and an equivalent in a foreign currency, usually 110% of the value of the Works], with a maximum deductible of [insert amount in Leones and an equivalent in a foreign currency]		
	(b)The minimum insurance cover for loss of or damage to property (except the Works, Plant, Materials and Equipment) is [amount in Leones and an equivalent in a foreign currency] with a maximum deductible of [insert amount in Leones and an equivalent in a foreign currency]		
	(c) The minimum insurance cover for personal injury or death and Third Party Liability is [amount in Leones and an equivalent in a foreign currency] with no deductible.		
11.1	The period for submission of the Program is 10 (Ten) Days from the date of signature of Agreement. The Project Manager shall determine the requirement for the Contractor to update the Program		
15.1	The Defects Liability Period is [number usually 90] days.		
17	In the case of lump sum contracts, Clause 17 shall be replaced by the following new clause 17 as follows:		
	17 Activity Schedule		
	17.1 The Contractor shall provide updated Activity Schedules within 14 days of being instructed by the Employer. The activities on the Activity Schedule shall be co-ordinated with the activities on the Program.		
	17.2 The Contractor shall allow delivery of Materials to the site separately on the Activity Schedule if Payment for Materials on site shall be made separately.		
18.1	In the case of lump sum contracts, Clause 18.1 shall be replaced by the following new Clause 18.1 as follows;		
	"18.1 The Activity Schedule shall be amended by the Contractor to accommodate changes of program or method or working made at the Contractor's own discretion. Prices in the Activity Schedule shall not be altered when the Contractor made such changes to the Activity Schedule."		
19.4	In case of lump sum contracts, clause 19.4 is replaced as follows: "19.4 The value of work executed shall comprise the value of completed activities in the Activity Schedule."		

Section VI. Contract Data 32

Condition of Contract Clause Number	Contract Data	
21.1 (a)	The Site Possession Date shall be	
21.1 (g)	The following events shall also be Compensation Events : [list events]	
23.1	The liquidated damages for the whole of the Works are [percentage] of the Final Contract Price per day. [or state no liquidated damages will be applied]	
23.1	The maximum amount of liquidated damages for the whole of the Works is [percent] of the Final Contract Price.	
24.1	The advance payment will be [amount or percentage of the Initial Contract Price]	
25.1	The amount of retention money will be [percent] of each payment due to the Contractor up to the maximum of [percent] of the total contract amount.	
31.1	The percentage to apply to the value of the work not completed, representing the Employer's additional cost for completing the Works is 10 % (ten percent)	
34.1	The place where arbitration will take place is [location]. [Alternatively, where arbitration is not to be used the text above should be replaced with the following sentence] Arbitration shall not be invoked and any dispute not settled by the panel of experts shall be referred to the civil law court.	

Section VII. Bank Guarantee Form for Advance Payment

This sample of Advance Payment Guarantee is for information only. Bidders should not complete the form at this time, as only the successful Bidder will be required to provide the Advance Payment Guarantee.

To: [name and address of Employer]

[name and Procurement Number of Contract]
Gentlemen:

In accordance with the provisions of the Conditions of Contract, Clause 24 ("Advance") of the above-mentioned Contract, [name and address of Contractor] (hereinafter called "the Contractor") shall deposit with [name of Employer] a Bank Guarantee to guarantee his proper and faithful performance under the said Clause of the Contract in an amount of [amount of Guarantee] [amount in words].¹

We, the [Bank or Financial Institution], as instructed by the Contractor, agree unconditionally and irrevocably to guarantee as primary obligator and not as Surety merely, the payment to [name of Employer] on his first demand without whatsoever right of objection on our part and without his first claim to the Contractor, in the amount not exceeding [amount of Guarantee] [amount in words].²

We further agree that no change or addition to or other modification of the terms of the Contract or of Works to be performed thereunder or of any of the Contract documents which may be made between [name of Employer] and the Contractor, shall in any way release us from any liability under this Guarantee, and we hereby waive notice of any such change, addition, or modification.

This Guarantee shall remain valid and in full effect from the date of the advance payment under the Contract until [name of Employer] receives full repayment of the same amount from the Contractor.

Circustum and analy

Signature and seal:		
Name of Bank:		
Address:		
Date:		

Rev. 2019 ver. 1

Yours truly,

¹ An amount is to be inserted by the Bank or Financial Institution representing the amount of the Advance Payment, and denominated either in the currency(ies) of the Advance Payment as specified in the Contract, or in a freely convertible currency acceptable to the Employer.

² An amount is to be inserted by the Bank or Financial Institution representing the amount of the Advance Payment, and denominated either in the currency(ies) of the Advance Payment as specified in the Contract, or in a freely convertible currency acceptable to the Employer.

Section VIII. Eligibility and Qualification Form

Bidder is to confirm with a tick [•] in each box on the right that the statement is true and sign and date the form where indicated.

2.1 Eligibility				
2.1.2 Conflict of	I confirm that there is no conflict of interests (ITB 2.2)			
Interest				
2.1.3 Ineligibilit	y Neither I [nor my Joint Venture Partners] have been declared			
	ineligible (ITB 2.3)			
	2.2 Historical Contract Non-performance			
2.2.1 History	Non-performance of a contract has not occurred within the last []			
of Non-	years prior to the deadline for application submission, based on all			
performing	information on fully settled disputes or litigation.			
contracts				
2.2.2 Failure	I have not failed to sign a contract and/or failed to provide			
to sign	performance security (ITB 31) for [] years			
contract				
2.2.3 Pending	All pending litigation shall in total not represent more than []			
Litigation	percent [] of my net worth and shall be treated as resolved against			
	me.			
	2.3 Financial Situation			
2.3.1	Submission of audited balance sheets [or other financial statements			
Historical	acceptable to the Purchaser,] for the last [] years to demonstrate			
Financial	e current soundness of the my financial position and prospective			
Performance	long term profitability.			
2.3.2 Average	Minimum average annual turnover of [Le], calculated as total			
Annual	certified payments received for contracts in progress or completed,			
Turnover	within the last [] years			
2.3.3	I confirm that I have access to, or availability of, financial resources			
Financial	such as liquid assets, unencumbered real assets, lines of credit, and			
Resources	other financial means, other than any contractual advance			
	payments to meet:			
	(i) the following cash-flow requirement: [Le]			
	and			
	(ii) the overall cash flow requirements for this contract and its			
current commitments.				
	2.4 Experience			
2.4.1	I confirm that I have experience as Works Contractor, in at least []			
	contracts within the last [] years, each with a value of at least [Le			
] that have been successfully and substantially completed and that			
	are similar to the proposed Works.			

The statements in this form are	true and accurately re	flect my eligibility and qualification.
Signed	Name	Date

2.5 Personnel

The Bidder must demonstrate that it has the personnel for the key positions for the Works naming the position and the person to be used.

No.	Position and Name of Person	Total Work Similar Experience (years)	In Similar Works Experience (years)
1			
2		a,	
3		2	
4			
5		1	

The Bidder shall provide details of the proposed personnel and their experience records

2.6 Equipment

The Bidder must demonstrate that it has the key equipment for the Works and should list such equipment in the table below.

No.	Equipment Type and Characteristics	Minimum Number required
1	0	
2	~	
3		
4		
5		
6		
7		
8		

Section IX. Integrity Pact

inis integrity Pact	is entered into on the day of in
the Year of Our Lord Two	Thousand and Between
	hereinafter referred to as "(Purchaser)",
	and
	hereinafter referred to as "(Supplier)"
Droomblo	

Whereas "the Parties" are cognizant of the scourge of corruption and its negative effects on the development of a country and are aware also of the immense benefits which doing business in a corruption free environment holds for their individual businesses as well as for the country as a whole

AND Whereas corruption and corrupt practices in the form of procurement violations particularly conflict of interest have been identified as an area for immediate and targeted attention in the relationship between the public service and the private sector

AND Whereas the parties now wish to further commit themselves to actions which will promote a corruption free business environment including full compliance with all relevant laws, rules and regulations which may currently be in force relating to anti-corruption and good business practices in line with the Anti-Corruption Act, 2008 and other government initiatives relating to the private sector in Sierra Leone

The Parties hereby commit themselves and pledge as follows:

- 1. To maintain a strict and unwavering adherence to good business practices in the execution of all their undertakings.
- 2. To take all measures necessary to prevent corruption in their mutual and other dealings.
- 3. To observe and implement recommendations, instructions or directives from the Anti-Corruption Commission made pursuant to the Anti-Corruption Act 2008.
- 4. To uphold implement and maintain a No bribery policy in the conduct of their transactions.

Reporting violations

5. To promptly inform the Anti-Corruption Commission of any employee, agent, representative or an associate, whether its own or of the other Party, who conduct may constitute corruption, or is likely to engender corruption or corrupt practices.

Conflict of Interest

- 6. To actively guard against Conflict of Interest including situations when an employee or staff's interest may interfere with the interests of the enterprise/organization to which he/she is employed.
- 7. To insist that employees or staff shall disclose to the enterprise/organization any situation that reasonably would be expected to give rise to a conflict of interest or the appearance of the same.
- 8. To ensure that employees or staff obtain approval prior to accepting any position to serve on a board of directors, an advisory board or on a committee of any entity.
- 9. That no employee/staff may obtain any personal material benefit or favour because of his or her position with the enterprise/organization.
- 10. That no employee/staff may have financial interest (indirect ownership, direct ownership or otherwise) in a company whose business/operations relate to his/her post, functions held or otherwise supervised in his/her current employment.

11. To closely monitor and regulate actual or potential conflict of interests, occasioned by the influence of certain social relationships on the objectivity of the employee/staff in making dispassionate judgment on behalf of the enterprise/organization.

THE PARTIES HEREBY demonstrate their pledge and commitment to the above Principles by signing hereunder on the day and year above first written

AND THEY FURTHER DECLARE that this pledge shall have the same binding effect as

any policy instrument that the parties use in the management of their business/entity.

SIGNATURE	a.
	DATE:
(PROCU	RING ENTITY)
In the presence of:-	
Name:	A37
Address:	
Designation:	.0
SIGNATURE	DATE:
SIGNATURE	DATE:
(BIDDEF In the presence of:- Name:	
Address:	
Designation:	
SIGNATURE	DATE:

Section X. Declaration of Conflict of Interest Form

Procurement Committee	e 🔲	
Technical Evaluation Comm	nittee 🔲	
Procurement Title:	•••	
Procurement Number:		
Iinterest / do not have any personal or financial interest the (Name of Procuring Entity) is about to evaluate.	declare th st with compani	,
Declaration : Have you or your partner any financial of commercial entities intending to do business with the which may be considered as constituting a real, pointerest?	(Name of Pr	ocuring Entity)
Yes No		
Type of interest, e.g. patent, shares, employment, association, payment (Including details on the compound, work, etc.)	Belongs to you, parter or unit?	Current interest
Q.		

Is there anything else that participating in this evaluation independence? Please state.		• •	
I hereby declare that disclosed real, potential or apparent conflyou of any change in these circourse of my term.	lict of interest is known	own to me. I undertake to info	rm
Signature		Date	
Name	Non	Designation	
4	A CO		